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Terms of Reference and Instructions for Participants
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Instructions

Please read the document and if you feel that your organisation is able to contribute to this Soft Market Testing exercise please complete the questionnaire attached to the end of this document and return it, via email, to procurement@nchsr.ac.uk on Friday 21st July 2017 at 17:00.

Please note that this is not a call for competition. 

The following are pertinent to this soft market testing: 

· An understanding of what a BIM Cave is aiming to deliver; 
· An ability to innovate and add value; 
· Whether the market has experience of being involved in and delivering similar projects; and 
· The overall value added in helping to scope the project. 


For the avoidance of doubt, this notice is for the purpose of conducting a soft market testing exercise, and will not formally begin the procurement or constitute any commitment by The National College for High Speed Rail (NCHSR) to undertake any procurement exercise.






































Soft Market Testing (SMT)

SMT in this case is where NCHSR, at an early stage in development of its proposals but prior to formulating any formal procurement opportunity, seeks input from the market as to what might be the most potentially attractive way of packaging and scoping a future procurement opportunity. 

This exercise will also provide an opportunity for NCHSR to obtain insight into how potential providers might approach the delivery of the service in question. It also gives useful early insight into the likely level of interest in a proposed project from that market. 

Potential bidders will not be prejudiced by any response or failure to respond to the soft market testing or attend the face-to-face interviews. Potential bidders must also note that a response to this notice does not guarantee an invitation to participate in this or any future procurement that NCHSR may conduct, nor that NCHSR will procure any such supply and services or accepts any proposals offered. Any procurement of the supply and services by NCHSR will be carried out strictly in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

NCHSR has developed a questionnaire (attached at the end of this document) that we would like interested parties to complete. Interested parties may then be invited to meet with the project team to discuss in more detail the options.

As stated above the outcome of the SMT exercise will inform an options appraisal with recommendations. 
Further detailed reports will be prepared as appropriate in accordance with the College’s Request for Proposal and approval procedures, and in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.   

Confidentiality and Freedom of Information

Please be aware that we are subject to the disclosure requirements of the Freedom of Information Act (FoIA) and that potentially any information we hold is liable to disclosure under that Act. For this reason, we would strongly advise that any information you consider to be confidential is labelled as such. In the event that a request is subsequently made for disclosure under the FoIA that request will be dealt with in accordance with the legislation and giving full regard to the information considered confidential.



























Background to the Soft Market Test
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· Provision of a fully immersive experience of projects designed using BIM prior to construction.
· Promote the benefits and use of BIM
· Demonstrate the collaborative approach for integrated system design
· Facilitates class size (max 10?) tuition
· Enables students to present and share work and project exercises
· Learning and Fun combined
· Appreciation and understanding of complex designs, construction methodology, sequencing
· Use and application of digital technology to solve problems pre-construction
· Cost effective experience of world wide designs and innovation


This initiative project will deliver the following activities:
· Explain/demonstrate the opportunities and application of VR & AR 
· Programme for contract, construction & installation of BIM cave and (any) required links to other IT/CAD systems 
· Detail the costing’s and options for payment (purchase, lease etc.) of the BIM facility
· Detail the Hardware and Software requirements + options for client regarding purchase 
· Explain the proposed support and maintenance for the BIM facility
· Classroom lecture facility
· CPD for industry visits and lectures

System users.
· Learners 
· Teachers
· External Industry Lecturers 
· BIM practitioners


Data types/usage.
· 3D Co-ordination
· Design Reviews
· Design Authoring
· Phase Planning 
· Code Validation
· Asset Management 
Project/Programme Planning

Overall Solution.
NCHSR are keen to explore all options or solutions that may currently be available in the market and would also be interested in responses that show how such a BIM Cave solution could be developed to maximise the opportunities in areas such as those listed above and also the use and application of VR/AR, Pre-Construction Design, Construction methodology and sequencing, Asset Maintenance and Integrated design management and solutions etc.

NCHSR at present are not fully aware of what currently exists in the market as options to them, even though the business requirements are known, the responses to this Soft Market Test will enable the College to re- evaluate their current situation and determine the specification and implications for the relevant service provision.

The College wants to ensure that we will be using the latest technology and would like advice on what is possible. The College is open to any suggestions on how the methodology used, could be improved or adapted to deliver the requirements in a simple and more efficient process and provide opportunities for achieving greater efficiency in the College.

Following discussions and input from the market NCHSR will draft an appropriate specification and what procurement route would be followed.




Questionnaire
Within the context of the background information above, NCHSR  would like your organisation to consider the questions below and submit a written response by 21st July 2017. Your responses should be brief and to the point. There is no maximum word count imposed, please do not use brochures or marketing material as an answer to any question. 

Bearing in mind the pertinent areas set out in the instructions section:

System specifications 

1. What is the name of your system?

2. Do any other Colleges or institutions use your system currently? If yes, please list by name and detail its core functionality and what deliverables that it has achieved. 
(Please also confirm if you would be happy for us to contact them) 

3. Please detail how your solution manages user access and how it provides a full audit trail of all enquiries.

4. Please provide details of your user interface. 
Please include screenshots where appropriate. 

5. Please describe the reporting capabilities of your system and any limitations?  
Please provide examples of reports that your system is capable of and outline the format they run on.
Please define what comes pre-built with your solution as standard, and what ability there is to create user defined reports, on real time information held.

Costs
6. What contract periods do you offer and is your pricing structure based on the number of users accessing the system? Please provide details of the pricing matrix where possible and whether the subscription will be paid on a monthly or annual basis.

7. What other charges could be applied to the College? For example will there be any additional charges for helpdesk support, training etc.?

8. What are the costs for hosting your system? (e.g. self-hosted by the College, cloud hosting?)

9. At the end of the contract, how would the data and documentation be downloaded into another system to ensure all the data and documentation is retained should the contract be ceased?

10. Given that the College has a duty to ensure value for money and is working to restrictive budgets, it is keen to ensure some type of flexibility in respect of a payment mechanism to avoid a significant up-front costs, and achieve a spread of payments over the complete term of the contract. 
What are your views on this? 




GENERAL INFORMATION

A1 	Full name, address and website:

	Organisation name
	

	Address
	

	Town/city
	

	Postcode
	

	Country
	

	Website
	



A2	Main contact for correspondence about this questionnaire:

	Name
	


	Position
	

	Telephone number
	

	Mobile phone number
	

	Fax number
	

	email address
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